
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

*TUESDAY, September 5, 2023 — 2:00 P.M. 
 

The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public to its Board Room while accommodating 
virtual observation options as a convenience to the public. Additionally, Board Meetings 
continue to be livestreamed for those who wish to observe remotely.  Please note that in the 
event of technical issues that disrupt the meeting livestream or receipt of public comments by 
phone or email, the meeting will continue. 
 

Instructions for members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors:   
 

Members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors under “Audience Comments/ 
Questions” or on specific agenda items, may do so as instructed below.  All comments will be 
subject to a limit of three (3) minutes. 
 

• Making Public Comment for Those Attending In-Person:  Members of the public who wish to 
observe or to address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical location. 
A Request to Speak slip is required to be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to start of the 
meeting (if possible). 

• Phone Comments During the Meeting: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for 
the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board Secretary 
at publiccomments@vcmwd.org, together with the agenda item number, and the Board 
Secretary will call when the board is ready to hear public comments;  or 

• Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that item closes at 
the meeting, email your comments to the Board Secretary at publiccomments@vcmwd.org 
and the Board Secretary and it will be read aloud at the public comment period; or 

• Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off in advance of the 
meeting at the District’s Administrative Office or mailed in advance of the meeting to 29300 Valley 
Center Rd., Valley Center, CA 92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on meeting day. 

These public comment procedures supersede the District’s standard public comment policies and 
procedures to the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with disabilities are 
required, such persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting by 
email to the Board Secretary at boardsecretary@vcmwd.org. 
 

Meeting Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the 
District’s website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the link listed below “live 
stream” on the page. 
 

Meeting Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made 
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District’s website at 
vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board Meeting Documents.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to 
the agenda per the provisions of Government Code Section 54954.2. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
 

Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but 
within the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda 
will be received during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code §54954.3). 

mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:boardsecretary@vcmwd.org
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  2   September 5, 2023 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM(S) 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is 
requested by a Board member, staff, or member of the audience. 

 
1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, August 21, 2023;  
2. Bid Results & Request to Approve PO #114914 for Purchase of 1 New 2023 Vehicle; and 
3. Bid Results & Request to Approve PO #114915 for Purchase of 1 New 2023 Vehicle.  
 
INFORMATIONAL/POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

4. Review Request from Wayne Hilbig Regarding the Assessment Lien on the Butterfield 
Trails Property and the Proposed Options to Fulfill the Request: 
 
Request from Wayne Hilbig Regarding the Assessment Lien on the Butterfield Trails property 
and the proposed options to fulfill the request will be reviewed. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 

5. Five-Year Strategic Plan ‒ Summary of Accomplishments and Next Steps: 
 
A summary report on what has been accomplished under the District’s current Five-Year 
Strategic Plan, Fiscal Years (FY) 2018-19 through 2022-23, will be presented. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S ITEM(S) 

 
6. General Information: 
 

General Informational items will be reviewed. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S ITEM(S) 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ITEM(S) and AB1234 REPORTING  

 
 

 

kperaino
Typewritten Text

kperaino
Typewritten Text



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  3   September 5, 2023 

CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider 
litigation, personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client 
privilege. Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed 
session.  Authority: Government Code §54956.9. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: 
 

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible 
to the public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, 
except as provided by Government Code Section 54954.2. Any written materials provided 
to a majority of the Board of Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any 
item on this agenda will be available for public inspection on the District’s website. The 
agenda is available for public review on the District’s website, http://www.vcmwd.org.  
 

For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Kirsten Peraino, 
Board Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or publiccomments@vcmwd.org. Upon request, 
this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any 
person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in a meeting should direct such request to the Board Secretary at least 48 hours 
before the meeting, if possible. 
 

 

 

— End of Agenda — 

http://www.vcmwd.org/
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org


 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, August 21, 2023 − 2:00 P.M. 

  

The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to 
order by President Polito at 2:00 PM. In the Board Room at 29300 Valley Center Rd.; Valley 
Center, CA 92082. Additionally, the Board Meeting was livestreamed for those who wish to 
observe remotely.  

 
ROLL CALL 
 

Board Members Present: President Polito, Vice President Ferro, Directors Holtz, Smith, and Ness.  
 

Staff Members Present: General Manager Arant, District Engineer Grabbe, Director of IT Pilve, Director 
of Finance & Administration Pugh, Director of Operations and Facilities Lovelady, Project Manager 
Carrillo, Project Manager Powers, Senior Engineer Lyuber, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
Peraino, General Counsel de Sousa, and Federal Consultant Howells (HGR) present in-person. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
 

President Polito established for the record the process by which public comments are received by 
the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM(S)  

  
1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, July 17, 2023;  

2. Audit Demands for Check Nos. 166614 ─ 166922 from July 7 thru August 10, 2023 and 
Wire Disbursements for Month Ending July 31, 2023; 

3. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending June 30, 2023; and 

4. Board of Director’s Request for Reimbursement for Per Diem & Expenses and Report of 
Expense Reimbursements per Government Code §53065.5.  

Action:  Upon motion by Ness, seconded by Holtz; and unanimously carried, the previously 
listed consent calendar items were approved. 

 
ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

5. Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-30 Recognizing and Congratulating the Vista Irrigation 
District on its 100-Year Anniversary: 

 
On September 11, 2023, the Vista Irrigation District (“VID”) will celebrate 100 years of successful 
water delivery to the constituents and communities within its service area. Adoption of VCMWD 
Resolution No. 2023-30 recognizes and honors the VID for this outstanding accomplishment 
 
Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ferro; motion to approve the following Resolution 

passed unanimously: 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

2 August 21, 2023 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-30 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT RECOGNIZING 

AND CONGRATULATING THE VISTA IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
ON ITS 100-YEAR ANNIVERSARY 

 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
    ABSENT: None 

 
6. Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-31 Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 

Services Agreement with Ardurra Group, Inc. to Extend the Construction Management and 
Inspection Services through FY 2023-24:  

 

Senior Engineer Lyuber presented background on the professional services agreement with Ardurra 
Group, Inc. ("Ardurra"). The District entered into the Agreement with Ardurra on August 16, 2022, to 
augment District inspection and construction management resources in support of construction 
projects in FY 2022-23. The agreement was for a one-year term with an option to renew. Staff 
stated the continued need for these services and propose to extend the agreement through the 
end of FY 2023-24, budgeted at a full-time commitment of approximately 2,080 hours. The cost 
will be expensed against the budgets and funding that exists within the respective project 
budgets, allocated towards Inspection and CM tasks. 
 
The construction management and inspection services began in response to the elevated capital 
project schedule that ensued as a result of the three pipeline projects that are funded by SRF, 
explained Mr. Lyuber. Due to the nature of the loan, all three had to be in construction 
simultaneously, and the District's inspection staff was not designed to oversee that many activities 
at once with regular day-to-day duties like development, mark-outs, and various other tasks that 
required inspection resources. 

 

Staff recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2023-31 approving 
Amendment No. 1 for $300,000 to the professional services agreement with Ardurra Group, Inc. 
resulting in a revised total contract amount of $682,800. 
 
Action:  Upon motion by Holtz, seconded by Ness; motion to approve the following Resolution 

passed unanimously: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-31 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT APPROVING 

AMENDMENT No. 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH ARDURRA GROUP, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR FY 2023-24 
 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
    ABSENT: None 
 
 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

3 August 21, 2023 

7. Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-32 Authorizing Staff to Carry Out the Gordon Hill Upper 
Pipeline Relocation Project and Finding that the Project is Exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act Pursuant to Public Resources Code § 21080.21: 
 

Project Manager Powers gave an overview of the Gordon Hill Upper Pipeline Relocation Project 
(“Project”). The Project was identified through the review of the Gordon Hill PRS Relief Project 
and first funded through a FY 2021-22 mid-year budget adjustment. The project plans to re-align 
an 8-inch cement mortar-lined and tar-wrapped steel pipeline (originally installed in 1965) which 
is currently located near an existing residential structure. The Project is expected to be 
constructed by District staff with a total project cost budgeted at $400,000, which includes 
sufficient funding for bid and build construction. 
 

District staff determined that the project is exempt from environmental review under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), pursuant to the Public Resources Code Section 
21080.21. The Project is for the relocation of an existing pipeline within a public right-of-way and 
is less than one mile in length. 

 

Staff recommended the Board Adopt Resolution No. 2023-32 authorizing staff to carry out the 
Gordon Hill Upper Pipeline Relocation Project and finding that the Project is exempt under the 
CEQA pursuant to Public Resources Code §21080.21 and directing staff to file a Notice of 
Exemption with the County Clerk. 

 
Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ferro; motion to approve the following Resolution 

passed unanimously: 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-32 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING STAFF TO CARRY OUT THE 

GORDON HILL UPPER PIPELINE RELOCATION PROJECT AND FINDING THAT THE 
PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

PURSUANT TO PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21080.21 
 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
    ABSENT: None 

 
INFORMATIONAL/POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S): 

 

8. Status Update on the EPA Grant Approval and Technical Correction to Change the Project 
from the Lilac Road Project to the Rodriguez Road Project: 

 
Senior Engineer Lyuber provided the status of the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) 
grant, describing its relationship with the Lilac Road Project and explained the need and process 
for Technical Correction (“TC”) to redirect grant funds toward the Rodriguez Road Project.  
 

By the time the District received notification of the EPA official recipient naming Lilac as one of 
the projects selected to receive appropriations, the project was already 50% complete. Soon 
after District staff began coordinating with EPA staff on details of the grant and it became 
apparent the timing of the Lilac Road Project being under construction created conflict with 
certain EPA requirements, at which time EPA staff suggested the District redirect the funds 
toward another similar project through a TC process. This process is a mechanism encouraged 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

4 August 21, 2023 

by the EPA that shifts money to a different project, through a simple request process. Staff 
identified the Rodriguez Road project as the candidate to shift funds to through the TC, submitted 
the request to the EPA.  
 

While the District waits for the EPA’s official response, a dedicated project account was 
established with $50K to facilitate completion of the  EPA application and selection of 
environmental and design consultants. The grant money has only been appropriated, funds are 
not guaranteed until the award is granted once all requirements have been satisfied through an 
EPA application process. Mr. Lyuber noted that the proposed Rodriguez Road Project will 
require environment evaluation and minor updates to the 2009 design. Staff anticipates 
construction to begin in the FY 2024-25. 
 
Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
9. Meadows No. 1 and Reid Hill Reservoir Paint and Recoat Project Closeout Report: 

 
Closeout Report for the Meadows No. 1 and Reid Hill Reservoirs Painting and Recoating Project 
(“Project”) was provided by Project Manager Powers. The project background, details, and 
pictures were presented for Board review. The Meadows No. 1 Reservoir is a 93-foot diameter 
by 40-foot tall 2 million gallon above-ground welded steel potable water reservoir, constructed 
in 1996 and last recoated/painted in 2006. The Reid Hill Reservoir is a 70-foot diameter by 35-
foot tall 1 million gallon above-ground welded steel potable water reservoir, constructed in 1978 
and last recoated/repainted in 2007, explained Mr. Powers.  
 

The notice of award was issued on September 19, 2022, with the notice to proceed issued on 
October 26, 2022. The apparent low bidder was Capital Industrial Coatings, LLC. with a total bid 
of $1,987,546 (approximately 1% less than the second bid but 47% higher than the engineer’s 
estimate) and required additional funding at the time of award.  District staff issued six change 
orders throughout the project, totaling a net credit of ($186,762) and adding an additional 91 
calendar days (“CD”). The original contract had a duration of 120 CD, but was completed in 211 
CD, with Notice of Completion taking effect on May 25, 2023. Funding in the amount of 
$1,590,000 was originally authorized for the Project in the FY 2022-23 Annual Budget and was 
increased to $2,315,000 with the award of the project.   
 

By completion of the project, the total contract amount was reduced to $1,800,784 (33% higher 
than the engineer’s estimate). The project was completed under budget, for a total cost of 
$1,926,340, allowing $388,660 to be released back to the Capital Improvements Reserve. 
 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
10. Gordon Hill Pipeline Replacement Project Closeout Report: 

 

Closeout Report for the Gordon Hill Pipeline Replacement Project (“Project”) was provided by 
Senior Engineer Lyuber. The project background, details, and pictures were presented for Board 
review. The project replaced and upsized 8 and 10-inch steel waterline and realigned portions 
of the waterline out of hard to access easements. 
 

The notice of award was issued on August 16, 2022, with the notice to proceed issued on 
September 20, 2022. The apparent low bidder was CCL Contracting, Inc. with a total bid of 
$2,384,649 (approximately 10% less than the second bid and 9% less than the engineer’s 
estimate). The Project had an original contract duration of 365 calendar days (“CD”).  
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

5 August 21, 2023 

District staff issued 5 change orders for a total net increase of $263,013 and 5 additional CD for 
a total of 370 CD.  The project was completed at $273K under budget.   Funding for the project 
was included as part of the 2020 Pipeline Replacement Program, through the Drinking Water 
State Revolving Fund (“DWSRF”) Loan and the District will be reimbursed from the DWSRF loan 
all actual project expenses, ultimately resulting in $3.46M being released back to the Capital 
Improvements Reserve.  The loan will be repaid over a 30-year term at a 1.2% interest rate, with 
an annual debt service for this project’s share of the DWSRF loan is estimated at $127,200.  
 

The project was completed early in only 223 calendar days with the notice of completion on May 1, 
2023. Mr. Lyuber noted that even with the change orders, final cost was only 1.8% over the 
engineer’s estimate. District staff attributed this to the caliber of contractor the District was 
fortunate to have as the low bidder. 

 
Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 

11. Moosa Water Reclamation Facility Aeration Line Replacement Project Closeout Report: 
 

Closeout Report for the Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility Aeration Line 
Replacement Project (“Project”) was provided by Project Manager Carrillo. The project background, 
details, and pictures were presented. Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility (Moosa) 
has been in operation since the mid-1970s.  Moosa was operated using both aeration air pipelines 
since 2012. Staff noticed air escaping through the pavement over the original aeration air 
pipeline alignment during a rain event. This led to staff recommending the replacement of the 
original portion of aeration air pipeline. 
 

The District’s Engineering staff laid out the new alignment and ordered all the materials required 
for installation and the District’s Construction Maintenance (CM) Division was assigned the task 
of excavating the trench and installation of the approximately 120 linear feet of new 8-inch coated 
and wrapped steel pipe. The installation required only one shutdown of the system to tie into the 
existing aeration pipe and did not cause any significant interruptions to the operation of the plant. 
The original aeration air pipeline was abandoned in place and concrete capped on both ends. 
 

Funding allocation for design and installation was $150,000 and established in the FY 2022-23 
Annual Budget. Of the $150,000 project budget amount, $100,000 was allocated assuming a 
normal bid/build construction project.  However, staff chose to have the CM Division perform the 
work saving both time and cost.  The total cost for CM staff and materials was $67,105, 32.9% 
below the construction estimate; significantly less than the construction cost performance standard 
of ±10%.  Total project cost was under budget at $87,487 and the remaining $62,513 will be 
released back to the Moosa Replacement Reserve. 

 
Action: Informational item only, no action required. 
 

12. Presentation of the District’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) Certificate 
of Achievement for Year Ending June 30, 2022: 

 

Director of Finance and Administration Pugh reported that the District received the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers 
Association for the District’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the year ended June 
30, 2022. This is the thirtieth consecutive year the District has received the award recognizing 
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial 
reports. Mr. Pugh commended the Finance Department as well as the District’s auditing firm, for 
their contributions in the preparation of the report. 

 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

6 August 21, 2023 

13. Overview of Strategic Plan Performance Measures – Results for Calendar Year 2022: 
 

The Strategic Plan sets forth twelve measurable performance goals, which are reported to the 
Board after each calendar year. The following summary of results for calendar year 2022, was 
provided by General Manager Arant:  
 

1. Customer Satisfaction: Performance Goal “Met” or “Exceeded” Customer Expectations – 100%. 

2. Unknown Water Loss: Performance Goal “Met”– Measured in terms of percent of water 
sold, acre feet and value of water loss over last ten years. 

3. Discretionary Reserves: Performance Goal “Met”.  

4. Return on Investments: Performance Goal “Not Met” – For the last 12 months, the District’s 
weighted average yield was 1.344%, 1.443 basis points, or 52% below the benchmark. 

5. Local Share of Commodity Cost: Performance Goal “Met” – at no time will the local rate 
be more than 15% of total commodity cost for Full Price (M&I) and 18% of the certified 
PSAWR supplies. 

6. Pump Efficiency: Performance Goal “Exceeded” with 106% of design efficiency. 

7. Solar Energy Production: Performance Goal “Exceeded”. The District’s six owned and 
operated solar facilities with a total capacity of 331.5 kWdc, produced a total of 
557,871kWhrs of electricity. All of the District’s Solar Facilities exceeded 90% of the 
scheduled kilowatt hour solar energy production for the current age of the PV panels. 

8. Final CIP Project Cost:  
• Overall Total – Performance Goal MET  
• Individual Projects – Performance Goal NOT MET  
• Overall Project Net Performance 2.3% Under Engineer’s Estimate – Goal MET 

9. Project Timelines: Performance Goal “Met”. 

10. Water Service Reliability: Performance Goal “Exceeded” – There were 1,797 hours of 
unplanned outage (compared to 1,398.3 hours of outage in 2021) in 100,836,360 service 
hours (93,872,160 in 2021) for an average of 11,511 active accounts (10,716 in 2021) 
providing a service reliability factor exceeding 99.999% (exceeded 99.999% in 2021). 

11. Lost Time Accidents: Performance Goal “Met” – The District had 2 recordable accidents 
with zero lost time accidents. The District had a total of 127,089 regular and overtime work 
hours logged in 2022. 

12. Compliance with State & Federal Regulations: Performance Goal “Met” with 100% compliance. 
 

Of the twelve Strategic Plan Performance Goals for the calendar year 2022, 4 goals were 
“exceeded”, 6 goals were “met”, 1 goal was “partially met”, and 1 goal was “not met”. 
 
Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S ITEM(S) 
 

14. ACWA Region 10 Election and Committee Appointments for the 2024‒25 Term: 
 

ACWA members will soon have the opportunity to elect a new Chair and Vice Chair for the next 
term in each of the ten respective ACWA regions. Following the election of the new ACWA 
President, the membership and leadership of all committees will be appointed. Existing 
committee members and leadership will need to reapply for appointment in 2024-25. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

7 August 21, 2023 

ACWA Region 10 Elections:  ACWA Member Agencies within San Diego and Orange County 
belong to ACWA Region 10, with the chairmanship alternating between the two counties each 
two-year term. For the upcoming term, San Diego is set to have the chair and two board 
members, while Orange County will have the vice chair and three board members. 
 

ACWA Committee Appointments:  Currently, VCMWD has two active committee members ‒ 
Director Oliver Smith (member of the ACWA Energy Committee) and General Manager Gary 
Arant (Chair of ACWA Energy committee). The Board was asked if any of its members would 
like to be nominated for any of the standing committees and requested approval for Mr. Smith 
and Mr. Arant to continue their involvement.  Nominations will be accepted until Sept. 15, 2023. 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Ferro, seconded by Smith; motion to concur with the Region 10 
Nominating Committee’s recommended slate passed unanimously. 

 

and 
 

   Upon motion by Holtz, seconded by Ness; motion to nominate Director Smith as a 
Member of the ACWA Energy Committee for the 2024-25 term, along with his 
alternate committee choices passed unanimously. 

 

and 
 

   Upon motion by Ferro, seconded by Smith; motion to nominate General Manager Arant 
as Chair of the ACWA Energy Committee for the 2024-25 term, along with his 
alternate committee choices passed unanimously. 

 

15. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary: 
 

San Diego County Water Authority Board Meeting Summary for the Regular Meeting of June 22, 
2023 and the Special Meeting of August 10, 2023 was provided. 
 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
16. General Information: 

 

A review of General Informational items reported on by General Manager Arant. 
 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S ITEM(S) 
 

None 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

None 

 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 

 

None 

 
 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

8 August 21, 2023 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ness; motion passes unanimously, the regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 4:31 PM. 

 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 

 

 
 
____________________________    _____________________________ 
Robert A. Polito, President            Kirsten N. Peraino, Secretary 
































	AGENDA
	1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, August 21, 2023
	2. Bid Results & Request to Approve PO #114914 for Purchase of 1 New 2023 Vehicle
	3. Bid Results & Request to Approve PO # 114915 for Purchae of 1 New 2023 Vehicle
	4. Review Request from Wayne Hilbig Regarding the Assessment Lien on the Butterfield Trails Property and the Proposed Options to Fulfill the Request
	5. Five-Year Strategic Plan ‒ Summary of Accomplishments and Next Steps



